

Minnesota Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program

Fiscal Year 2024 Request for Proposals Laws of Minnesota 2023 Chapter 41, Article 1, Section 2, Subd. 19

Important Dates

Proposal Available: March 27, 2023

Letter of Intent Deadline: 4:30 p.m. Central Time, May 22, 2024 Proposal Submission Deadline: 4:30 p.m. Central Time, May 29, 2024

Presentations: June 25, 2024

Award Notice to Applicants: No later than July 5, 2024

Authors

Cha Her

Program Administrator Tel: 651-259-3991 cha.her@state.mn.us

Laura Benson

Grants Administrator Tel: 651-259-3906

laura.benson@state.mn.us

About the Minnesota Office of Higher Education

The Minnesota Office of Higher Education is a cabinet-level state agency providing students with financial aid programs and information to help them gain access to postsecondary education. The agency also serves as the state's clearinghouse for data, research and analysis on postsecondary enrollment, financial aid, finance and trends.

The Minnesota State Grant Program is the largest financial aid program administered by the Office of Higher Education, awarding up to \$224 million in need-based grants to Minnesota residents attending accredited institutions in Minnesota. The agency oversees other state grant and scholarship programs, tuition reciprocity programs, a student loan program, Minnesota's 529 Institution Savings Plan, licensing and early college awareness programs for youth.

Minnesota Office of Higher Education

1450 Energy Park Drive, Suite 350 Saint Paul, MN 55108-5227

Tel: 651.642.0567 or 800.657.3866

TTY Relay: 800.627.3529 Fax: 651.642.0675

Email: info.ohe@state.mn.us

Contents

Grant Overview	1
Funding Availability	
Eligibility	1
Eligible Applicants	1
Eligible Projects	2
Competitive Priorities	3
Collaboration	3
Proposal Process and Requirements	3
Letter of Intent to Submit	3
Full Proposals	3
Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion	4
Selection Criteria	5
Financial and Applicant Capacity Review	6
Technical Assistance Questions	7
Timeline and Selection Process	8
Conflicts of Interest	8
Public Data	9
Grant Provisions and Administrative Regulations	9
Contracts	9
Business with the State	9
Fiscal Procedures	10
Grant Bidding Requirement	10
Reporting and Accountability	10
Grant Monitoring	10

	Grant Reporting	11
	Attribution	11
	Publications from Funded Research Projects	11
	Ownership of Copyrights and Patents	11
	Data Sharing	11
	Audit	12
	Affirmative Action and Non-Discrimination	12
	Voter Registration Requirement	12
C	Contact Information	13
P	Proposal Documents Available Online	13
Α	Appendix A: Letter of Intent to Submit Form	14

Grant Overview

The Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program began on July 1, 2015 per Minnesota 2015 Session Law, Chapter 69 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/2015/0/Session+Law/Chapter/69/), directing the Commissioner of the Minnesota Office of Higher Education to establish a grant program for institutions in Minnesota for research into new and innovative treatments and rehabilitative efforts for the functional improvement of people with spinal cord and traumatic brain injuries.

The overall objective of this program is to foster and encourage innovative research for that leads to a cure, novel treatments, and/or rehabilitative techniques for spinal cord and traumatic brain injuries. (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/136A.902)

Funding Availability

\$3,000,000 is appropriated to each year of the 2024/2025 biennium to support the Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Grant Program, with three percent of this appropriation for program administration. Therefore, \$1,455,000 is available for grants.

The Commissioner of the Office of Higher Education, in consultation with the program's advisory council, shall award 50 percent of the available grant funds for research focused on spinal cord injuries and 50 percent to research focused on traumatic brain injuries. Should there be additional funding available for this grant cycle, it will be included in the total funds awarded and divided 50/50 by content area.

Eligibility

Eligible Applicants

Eligible grant applicants are institutions/organizations located within Minnesota and fall into one or more of the following categories:

- Public/state-controlled institution of higher education
- Private institution of higher education
- Nonprofit with 501(c)(3) IRS status (other than institution of higher education)
- Nonprofit without 501(c)(3) IRS status (other than institution of higher education)
- Small business
- For-profit organization (other than small business).

The principal investigator must be affiliated with a Minnesota-based research institution/organization.

Eligible principal investigators must have the skills, knowledge, and resources necessary to carry out the proposed research. This program is not for postdoctoral fellowships or residents (non-board eligible/board

certified physicians); postdoctoral fellows and residents will not be considered as principal investigators. Post-doctorates, residents, or other individuals are eligible to be listed as key personnel or consultants.

Eligible Projects

In fiscal year 2024, three funding options are available through the Minnesota Office of Higher Education. Each tier, with maximum allowable request, base project time, and project requirements are listed below:

Tier 1: Pilot Project Grant

- Max Request: \$125,000.
- Project Time: 2 years + 1 year no-cost extension.
- Project Details: Reflects early investment as the researcher prepares to seek a larger grant award from a federal program or nonprofit organization. Preliminary data is not required but encouraged.

Tier 2: Standard Research Grant

- Max Request: \$250,000.
- Project Time: 2 years + 1 year no-cost extension.
- Project Details: Primarily for research with strong supporting/preliminary data. If the budget is
 justifiable, the Standard Research Grant may also fund pilot projects. Applicants are encouraged to
 attach papers; in-press, pre-published drafts, and accepted papers may be cited or submitted separately
 as an appendix.

Tier 3: Clinical/Translational Research Grant

- Max request: \$500,000.
- Project Time: 3 years + 2 year no-cost extension.
- Project Details: Projects must have concurrent application for, or funding from federal or industry sources. Preliminary data must be published or in press in a scientific journal and cited or submitted separately as an appendix.

Successful proposals will be relative to the topic of spinal cord and brain injury and have high scientific merit.

Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury research proposals will be funded up to the maximum request per funding tier for the Fiscal Year 2024 grant period, which includes indirect costs at a maximum of 8% of total direct costs.

The Minnesota Office of Higher Education withholds the right to reduce grant awards below the original request based on funding availability, accuracy of cost, and other factors.

Competitive Priorities

Preference will be given to proposals that focus on treating the primary neurological injury and to projects that have received IDE approval prior to the time of proposal submission.

Depending on the availability of funds and other factors, preference may be given to proposals that seek to change the nature and course of the primary neurological injury.

Collaboration

Collaboration is encouraged. Researchers may collaborate both within Minnesota and with entities/researchers in other states - however, the applicant-institution must reside within the state of Minnesota and write and submit the Letter of Intent to Submit and Full Proposal.

Proposal Process and Requirements

Letter of Intent to Submit

Letters of Intent to Submit must be submitted by 4:30 pm on May 22, 2024.

Applicants must complete the Letter of Intent to Submit through this form:

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=RrAU68QkGUWPJricIVmCjFlzYLk8uWNIpGEVY_gBdM9U

NOIXVOI3WU1WRVQ1QTFINUY0RTBCVVRQWi4u

A copy of the Letter of Intent to Submit can be found in Appendix A.

Full Proposals

Once an applicant has submitted their Letter of Intent to Submit, they will receive instructions and materials to complete a full proposal from OHE.

Proposals must be submitted by **4:30 pm on May 29, 2024**. There is no limit to the number of proposals that an eligible applicant may submit.

Applicants must meet the minimum requirements in order to be fully considered for this grant opportunity.

All applicants must be available on the day of the hybrid in person-virtual proposal review (June 25, 2024) to give a five-minute presentation on their proposed project and respond to reviewers' questions. A list of time slots will be sent to the applicants at least two weeks in advance.

The full proposal will include:

1. Principal Investigator/Institutional Assurance Form.

- 2. Proposal Cover Sheet
- Program Abstract summarizing the focus, delivery, and desired outcome of the proposed research. <u>The</u>
 <u>Program Abstract MUST be written in lay-persons terms and be accessible to a reviewer with little-to-no existing science knowledge</u>.
- 4. Research Plan (not to exceed ten (10) numbered, double-spaced pages)
- 5. Reference page citing research-based references that support proposed activities and lists the PubMed central reference number (PMCID) at the end of the full journal citation, if available.
- 6. Budget and Budget Justification Pages. On the budget page, list the direct costs for all budget categories. Supplies and other costs must relate directly to performance of the projects. Indirect costs cannot exceed 8% of total direct costs. Sub-awards must be listed in the budget and budget justification. All costs must be specifically justified on the one-page budget justification form, which can be entered in manually or uploaded.
- 7. Senior/Key Personnel Report. Provide required information for senior/key personnel. Can be entered manually or uploaded.
- 8. Biographical Sketch of Principal Investigator and Senior/Key Personnel including his/her bibliographies (4-page maximum for each individual). Can be entered manually or uploaded.
- 9. Other Grant Support for Principal Investigator and Senior/Key Personnel. Indicate current support relevant to the proposed project (three page maximum for each individual).
- 10. Financial and Capacity Review Responses (see "Financial and Capacity Review" section below)
- 11. Additional appendices are allowed and may contain such items as letters of agreement from collaborators, letters of support, additional scientific materials, etc. DO NOT include the applicant institution's public relations or promotional materials. Appendices shall be uploaded in word or PDF format.

Full proposal components are detailed in this reference document (https://tinyurl.com/5hcp4z2h)

Late or incomplete proposals will not be considered. The applicant will incur all costs associated with applying to this request for proposal. By submission of proposal content, the applicant affirms the information provided is true, correct and reliable for purposes of evaluation for a potential grant award. The submission of inaccurate or misleading information may be grounds for disqualification.

Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion

It is the policy of the State of Minnesota to ensure fairness, precision, equity and consistency in competitive grant awards. This includes implementing diversity and inclusion in grant-making. Department of Administration

Office of Grants Management (OGM) <u>Policy 08-02</u>¹ establishes the expectation that grant programs intentionally identify how the grant serves diverse populations, especially populations experiencing inequities and/or disparities.

This grant will serve individuals with spinal cord injuries and traumatic brain injuries. This commitment is demonstrated through a criterion in the proposal evaluation process.

Selection Criteria

All proposals will be evaluated according to the following 45-point scale:

1. Significance (1-9 points)

- The proposed project addresses an important problem or a critical barrier to progress in the field.
- If the aims of the project are achieved, scientific knowledge, technical capacity, and/or clinical practice will be improved.
- Successful completion of proposed project aims will change the concepts, methods, technologies, treatment, or rehabilitative services that drive this field.

2. Innovation (1-9 points)

- The proposal challenges and seeks to shift current research or clinical practice paradigms by using novel theoretical concepts, approaches or methodologies, instrumentation, or interventions.
- A refinement, improvement, or new application of theoretical concepts, approaches or methodologies, instrumentation, or interventions is proposed.

3. Approach (1-9 points)

- The overall strategy, methodology, and analyses are well-reasoned and appropriate to accomplish the specific aims of the proposed project.
- Potential problems, alternative strategies, and benchmarks for successes are presented.
- If the project is in the early stages of development, the proposed strategy will establish feasibility and manage particularly risky aspects of the proposed project.
- If the project involves human subjects and/or NIH-defined clinical research, plans are in place for Protection of Human Subjects and inclusion (or exclusion) of individuals on the basis of sex/gender, race, and ethnicity, as well as the inclusion (or exclusion) of children, justified in terms of the proposed scientific goals and research strategy.

4. Investigator(s) (1-9 points)

• The PI, collaborators, and other researchers are well suited for the project.

¹ https://shorturl.at/jszGT

- Early-Stage Investigators or New Investigators have appropriate experience and training.
- Established Investigators have demonstrated an ongoing record of accomplishments that have advanced their field(s).
- If the project is collaborative or multi-PI, the investigators have complementary and integrated expertise and their leadership approach, governance, and organizational structure are appropriate for the project.
- 5. Appropriateness of Facilities/Environment (1-9 points)
 - The scientific environment in which the work will be done will contribute to the probability of success.
 - Institutional support, equipment and other physical resources available to the investigators are adequate for the proposed project.
 - The project will benefit from unique features of the scientific environment, subject populations, or collaborative arrangements.
- 6. Budget (narrative evaluation comments only)
 - The budget is clear, concise, and justified by the narrative describing proposed costs.
 - The budget is cost effective and reflective of the RFP and program objectives.

The assignment of points during the proposal review process will be reflective of National Institutes of Health guidelines.

The Minnesota Office of Higher Education retains the right to offer partial or reduced awards depending on funding availability.

Financial and Applicant Capacity Review

Only applicable to business entities, nonprofit organizations, and political subdivisions:

- Business Entity: An organization that is formed under Minnesota statutes (Chapters 300-324A)
 pertaining to corporations, cooperative associations, partnerships, limited partnerships, or limited liability companies and that has filed documents with the secretary of state
- Nonprofit Organization: A charitable organization that is formed for the purpose of fulfilling a mission to improve the common good of society rather than to acquire and distribute profits. The organization meets the definition in Chapter 317A (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/317A), Minnesota Statutes 309.50, Subdivision 4 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/309.50#stat.309.50.4), or meets the definitions defined in the Internal Revenue Service code, with the most common type being a 501 (c)(3)
- **Political Subdivision**: A county, town, city, school district, or other municipal corporation or political subdivision of the state authorized by law to enter into contracts

In alignment with Minnesota Statute §16B.981, Minnesota Session Laws Chapter 62, Article 7, Section 11, Subdivisions 2-5 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/2023/0/Session+Law/Chapter/62/), OHE requires applicants who are business entities, nonprofit organizations, and political subdivisions to undergo a risk assessment prior to grant award to determine whether a risk mitigation plan and/or enhanced oversight is required to responsibly award the grant.

The submission of inaccurate or misleading information may be grounds for disqualification from the grant contract agreement award and may subject an organization to suspension or debarment proceedings, as well as other remedies available to the State, by law.

Based on Minnesota Statute §16B.981, Minnesota Session Laws Chapter 62, Article 7, Section 11, Subdivision 2-5 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/2023/0/Session+Law/Chapter/62/), if the risk assessment identifies substantial financial, organizations, capacity, and/or management risks, OHE may:

- Request more information from the applicant for the purpose of satisfying the concerts
- Develop a risk mitigation plan that addresses the concerns and accompanies the grant contract agreement
 - o Strategies may include enhanced monitoring, additional reporting, or technical assistance
- · Provide enhanced technical assistance and oversight
- Not award the grant

Applicants have 30 business days to respond to requests for additional information and/or work with OHE to develop a risk mitigation plan.

OHE has the authority to not award a competitive grant source. OHE must notify the applicant and provide reasons for not awarding the grant. The applicant may contest the decision to not award within 15 business days. OHE must consider any additional information the applicant provides with an additional 15 business days. As a final decision, OHE may affirm, reverse, or modify the initial decision to not award a grant. If OHE's final decision is not to award the grant, OHE must notify the applicant and the Commissioner of Administration. The applicant may contest OHE's final decision within 30 business days of the agency's notifications about the decision.

Technical Assistance Questions

Technical assistance is available for interpreting instructions or preparing proposals by emailing GWI.OHE@state.mn.us. Please review all available materials before emailing your inquiry.

To ensure fair and equitable processing of proposals, OHE will not review and/or comment on draft proposals.

Timeline and Selection Process

March 27, 2024 Request for Proposals available to applicants

4:30 p.m., May 22, 2024 Deadline for receipt of intent to submit forms

May 10, 2024 Technical Questions Deadline

4:30 p.m., May 29, 2024 Deadline for receipt of full proposals

No later than June 4, 2024 Committee begins review of applications

June 25, 2024 Presentations and Q&A (hybrid in-person/virtual)

No later than July 5, 2024 Applicants Notified

Letters of Intent to Submit must arrive by 4:30 p.m., May 22, 2024. Once a Letter of Intent is submitted, full proposal materials will be provided to the applicant by OHE.

Full proposals must arrive by 4:30 p.m., May 29, 2024.

Upon receipt by OHE, proposals will be reviewed to determine if all required materials are included and if the proposal responds to program requirements. Incomplete proposals, late proposals, proposals not responding to submission guidelines, and proposals from ineligible applicants will not be considered.

Qualifying proposals will be reviewed and recommendations made by members of the Spinal Cord and Traumatic Brain Injury Advisory Council. The strengths and weaknesses of each proposal will be reviewed in accordance with the criteria described under Selection Criteria. A formal decision on the recommendations of the advisory council will be made in early July 2024.

The grant becomes effective when the grant contract agreement is fully executed, the contract has reached the effective date, and the State's Authorized Representative has notified the grantee that work may commence. Grantees can only incur eligible expenditures upon the grant contract effective or execution date, whichever is later. Expenditures incurred prior are not eligible for reimbursement through the grant.

Conflicts of Interest

OHE takes steps to prevent individual and organizational conflicts of interest, both in reference to applicants, reviewers, and administrators per Minnesota Statute §16B.98, Subdivision 2-3 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/16B.98) and Conflict of Interest Policy for State Grant-Making 08-01 (https://mn.gov/admin/government/grants/policies-statutes-forms/).

Organizational conflicts of interest occur when:

 A grantee or applicant is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the OHE due to competing duties or loyalties • A grantee's or applicant's objectivity in carrying out the grant is or might be otherwise impaired due to competing duties or loyalties

In cases where a conflict of interest is in question or disclosed, the applicants or grantees will be notified and actions may be pursued, including but not limited to, revising the grant work plan or grantee duties to mitigate the risk, requesting the grant applicant to submit an organizational conflict of interest mitigation plan, disqualification from eligibility for the grant award, amending the grant, or termination of the grant contract agreement.

Public Data

Per Minnesota Statutes 13.599 Grants (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/13.599),

- Names and addresses of grant applicants and amount requested will be public data once proposal responses are opened.
- All remaining data in proposal responses (except trade secret data as defined and classified in Minnesota Statutes 13.37 General Nonpublic Data (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/13.37)
 will be public data after the evaluation process is completed. For purposes of this grant, data will be considered public when all the grant contract agreements have been fully executed.
- All data created or maintained by OHE as part of the evaluation process (except trade secret data as
 defined and classified in Minnesota Statutes 13.37 General Nonpublic Data) will be public data after the
 evaluation process is complete (for the purposes of this grant, when all grant agreements have been
 fully executed).

Grant Provisions and Administrative Regulations

Contracts

Organizations selected for a fiscal year 2024 award may have limited to no input on the State grant agreement. If you would like to review a sample grant agreement prior to submitting a proposal, or have any questions on what modifications to the contract are allowable, please contact Cha Her (cha.her@state.mn.us)

Office of Grants Management – Grant contract agreement templates are available for review online at https://mn.gov/admin/government/grants/policies-statutes-forms/.

Business with the State

A grantee must register as a vendor with the State of Minnesota's SWIFT System (https://mn.gov/mmb/accounting/swift/) prior to executing a grant contract with OHE. The grantee's federal tax identification number is required to complete registration. Contracts and grant reimbursement will be processed through the SWIFT vendor portal. Grantees who are already registered as vendors but do not remember

information, should contact Minnesota Management and Budget (MMB) vendor helpline at (651) 201-8106 or efthelpline.mmb@state.mn.us.

Fiscal Procedures

All Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program funds should be assigned to individual accounts which can be readily identified and verified. If an institution receives more than one grant, separate accounts should be established for each grant. Once a grant contract has been fully executed, the grant period will begin.

Grant Bidding Requirement

Grantees must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. Grantees must support documentation of the purchasing and/or bidding process utilized to contract services in their financial records, including support documentation of verbal quotes or bids and justifying a single/sole source bid, if applicable.

Grantees must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred in Minnesota per the Department of Administration's report: https://mn.gov/admin/osp/government/suspended-debarred/.

Reporting and Accountability

Grantees must complete all monitoring and reporting documentation and visits as required by OHE. Grant reimbursement and future grant eligibility is contingent upon fulfillment of reporting requirements. Grantees must also adhere to audit, affirmative action and non-discrimination requirements, and voter registration requirement.

Grant Monitoring

Minnesota Statutes 16B.97 and Office of Grants Management Policy 08-10 Grant Monitoring (https://mn.gov/admin/government/grants/policies-statutes-forms/) require the following:

- One monitoring visit during the grant period on all state grants of \$50,000 and higher
- Annual monitoring visits during the grant period on all grants of \$250,000 and higher
- Conducting a financial reconciliation of grantee's expenditures at least once during the grant period on grants of \$50,000 and higher. For this purpose, the grantee must make expense receipts, employee timesheets, invoices, and any other supporting documents available upon request by the State.

In circumstances of OHE not being required to monitor a grantee based upon the above scenarios, OHE will consider requests from grantees to conduct monitoring services.

OHE will base monitoring schedules upon the availability of staff and grantee. To the extent possible, monitoring will be conducted at the location of the grantee and will occur within six months of the contract effective date.

Grant Reporting

Each approved project must submit an annual interim narrative and financial report for each year of their grant period, and one final report at the conclusion of the grant. At a minimum, the annual narrative report must document progress made on the objectives of the research project.

Copies of materials which resulted from the grant should be submitted along with the annual narrative report, or as materials are subsequently published.

Requests to change project activities, project personnel, or to move funds between approved budget lines must be submitted in advance with appropriate justification. Unexpended funds must be returned to the Minnesota Office of Higher Education.

Attribution

Program material must bear the following acknowledgement:

"Funds for this research project were provided by the State of Minnesota Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program administered by the Minnesota Office of Higher Education."

Publications from Funded Research Projects

Copies of all publications from funded research projects must be provided to the Minnesota Office of Higher Education.

Ownership of Copyrights and Patents

Ownership of any copyrights, patents, or other proprietary interests that may result from grant activities, shall be governed by applicable federal and state regulations and local institutional/organizational policies.

Extensions

Grant extensions/no-cost extensions must be requested at least 45 days prior to the grant contract expiration date.

Data Sharing

All grant recipients are strongly encouraged to share results with open data commons, to fulfill compliance recommendations for Findable, Accessible, Interoperable and Reusable data consistent with new NIH standards. For example, SCI grantees may use SCI-Open Data Commons.

Audit

Per Minnesota Statutes 16B.98 Grants Management Process, Subdivision 8 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/16B.98), the grantee's books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the grantee or other party that are relevant to the grant or transaction are subject to examination by the Commissioner of Administration, the state granting agency and either the legislative auditor or the state auditor, as appropriate. This requirement will last for a minimum of six years from the grant contract agreement end date, receipt, and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all state and program retention requirements, whichever is later.

Affirmative Action and Non-Discrimination

- A. The grantee agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, status in regard to public assistance, membership or activity in a local commission, disability, sexual orientation, or age in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified (Minnesota Statute 363A.02). The grantee agrees to take affirmative steps to employ, advance in employment, upgrade, train, and recruit minority persons, women, and persons with disabilities.
- B. The grantee must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The grantee agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Minnesota Rules, part 5000.3500 (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/5000.3500/).
- C. The grantee agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.

Voter Registration Requirement

The grantee will comply with Minnesota Statutes 201.162 Duties of State Agencies (https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/201.162) by providing voter registration services for its employees and for the public served by the grantee.

Contact Information

For more information about this Request for Proposal, please contact:

Cha Her

Program Administrator Minnesota Office of Higher Education 1450 Energy Park Drive, Suite 350 Saint Paul, MN 55108

Email: cha.her@state.mn.us
Phone: (651) 259-3991

Laura Benson

Grants Administrator
Minnesota Office of Higher Education
1450 Energy Park Drive, Suite 350
Saint Paul, MN 55108

Email: laura.benson@state.mn.us

Phone: (651) 259-3906

Proposal Documents Available Online

General information about the Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program and the proposal process is available online at https://www.ohe.state.mn.us/sPages/CG.cfm.

All proposal components will be available for reference on the Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program web page. Those components are:

- 1. Principal Investigator/Institutional Assurance Form
- 2. Proposal Cover Sheet
- 3. Program Abstract
- 4. Research Plan
- 5. Reference Page
- 6. Budget and Budget Justification Pages
- 7. Senior/Key Personnel Report
- 8. Biographical Sketch of Principal Investigator and Senior/Key Personnel
- 9. Other Grant Support for Principal Investigator and Senior/Key Personnel
- 10. Financial and Capacity Review Responses
- 11. Additional appendices

Appendix A: Letter of Intent to Submit Form

Letter of Intent to Submit for Minnesota Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program

If your institution intends to apply for funding under the Spinal Cord Injury and Traumatic Brain Injury Research Grant Program, please provide the Office of Higher Education with the following information:

Grant Program, please provide the Office of Higher Education with the following information.	
Principal Investigator's Name	
Institution/Organization	
Project Title	
Address	

E-mail

Telephone

Mark the appropriate content area as applies to your proposal. While projects can address one or both content areas, only one must be selected:

- Research project for functional improvement of people with spinal cord injury
- Research project for functional improvement of people with traumatic brain injury

Check the correct tier as it applies to your proposal's funding/project:

- Tier 1: Pilot Project Grant
- Tier 2: Standard Research Grant
- Tier 3: Clinical/Translational Research Grant

Name of individual completing this form

Email of individual completing this form

(Follow up information will be sent to this email address)